
9 March 2020

NOTICE OF MEETING

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Tuesday, 17 March 2020
beginning at

7:00 pm
at

Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Paul Bicknell (Chairman)
Councillor Tina Campbell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Alex Bourne Councillor Daniel Clarke
Councillor Jephthe Doguie Councillor Wayne Irish
Councillor Darshan Mann Councillor Rosemary Reynolds
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting.

Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website -

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed. To register please contact the Democratic Services 
Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Apologies    

2. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 10) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2020.

3. Chair's Report    

4. Public Participation    

5. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

6. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    

7. Planning Application - Land South of Chestnut Avenue/North Stoneham Park, 
Stoneham Lane, Eastleigh, SO50 9HT (F/19/87086)    (Pages 11 - 34) 

Consent for the erection of 65 dwellings (additional to the 1,100 dwellings granted 
under outline permission O/15/76023), public open space, landscaping, boundary 
treatments, roads and footways, car parking, drainage and other supporting works 
and infrastructure.

8. Planning Application - The Point, Leigh Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9DE    (Pages 35 - 
42) 

Consent to display a public artwork.

9. Finance Management Report    (Pages 43 - 46)

10. Planning Appeals     

The Head of Legal Services to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been allowed:-
 

1 Robin Square, Eastleigh, SO50 9JZ

Appeal against the Council’s refusal for change of use from C4 House in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO) to Sui Generis 8-bedroom HMO. (F/19/86031)

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday, 9 June 2020 at 7:00 pm

at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news-
2



Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 21 January 2020  (7:05 pm – 8:37 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Bicknell (Chairman); Councillors Campbell, Bourne, Clarke, 
Doguie, Irish, Mann, Reynolds and Tyson-Payne

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

92. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 November be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

93. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

94. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chair welcomed Councillor Mann back following his absence due to a 
broken leg. He also provided members with an update on the recent 
successes within the area:

 A subway was opened near the M3 junction
 The play area was to be opened at Leah Gardens; and
 The North Stoneham Community building has been started and was 

due for opening early 2012. However, the School, which was being 
built by Hampshire County Council, was due for opening September 
2020. 

95. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Mr Simon Payne addressed the Committee on:

 Requested advice on the options if the Civic Office site 
doesn’t attract the tenancies being advertised currently, what 
were the financial implications to the Council with lost 
revenue and how many trees had been removed from the 
site; and

 Clearance of leaves and dirt from public drainage collection 
points to avoid flooding. Proposed that this could be dealt 

5

Agenda Item 2



2

with by way of restricted parking on Cherbourg Road and/or 
Chestnut Avenue. 

The Chair thanked Mr Payne for his comments and advised that an email 
would be sent to him with an update on these matters.

96. PROGRESS UPDATE

RESOLVED – 

That the Progress Update Report was noted.

97. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

The Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that had to 
be considered when determining planning applications; in particular the 
issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This was set 
against the broader policy framework.

98. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND OFF LEIGH ROAD, EASTLEIGH - 
A/19/86823

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Housing and 
Development (Agenda item 8) concerning an application for consent to 
display 1no. freestanding marketing board sign. (Ref: A/19/86823).

The Committee was advised that one representation had been received 
raising concerns that Chalvington Road is a residential road and not 
suitable for advertising hording.

There was one question from a member of the public.

No objections/comments have been submitted by Hampshire County 
Council Highways or Southampton Airport Safeguarding. 

RESOLVED -

To PERMIT as per conditions set out in the officer’s report.

99. VELMORE ESTATE PARKING MEASURES

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Engineering Specialist 
(Agenda Item 9) concerning parking measures on Velmore Estate.

RESOLVED – 

That the Committee approved the following:

(1) Parking restrictions in Wiltshire Road to ensure that the road is 
un-obstructed and remains a viable bus route; and

6



3

(2) Parking restrictions at the junction of Belmont Road and Cox 
Row to prevent obstruction of the sight lines.

100. AIR QUALITY UPDATE REPORT

The air quality report provided an update to the Eastleigh Local Area 
Committee on the state of air quality and progress in implementing the 
Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area Action Plan.  It included graphs 
showing recent data from monitoring stations in the Eastleigh Local Area, 
up to the beginning of December 2019.  There was also an update on 
progress made against the existing Eastleigh Air Quality Action Plan and 
an outline of how this is being reviewed and reissued as part of a Borough-
Wide Air Quality Action Plan which is currently undergoing an approval 
and adoption process. 

The Head of Environment discussed with Councillors to continue support 
for the new post for a Travel Planner. The Local Area Manager confirmed 
that money has been set aside for this at the last meeting.

The Chair invited Ms Cheryl Lewington and Mr Simon Payne in turn to give 
their views on this matter. Ms Lewington explained to the Committee that 
the rise of air pollution had been having consequences on her. The Chair 
thanked Ms Lewington for her comments. Mr Payne then gave his 
comments and asked what is being done to tackle the rising air quality. 
The relevant officers answered Mr Payne’s concerns accordingly. 

RESOLVED - 
   
That the Eastleigh Local Area Committee made the following 
recommendations:

1) Investigate and report back with a list of the status of all developer 
contributions relating to travel plans in the ELAC area by next ELAC 
meeting (17th March 2020); and

2) To ask the Council to review its Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Note specifically in relation to increasing developers’ contributions 
towards air quality.   

3) A list of all the Developers Contributions, attributed to Air Quality 
with expiry dates, are provided at the next meeting of the Eastleigh 
Local Area Committee on March 17th 2020. 

101. COMMUNITY GRANTS

The report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the Eastleigh 
Community Grants Panel was considered.

The Local Area Manager verbally updated the committee on an error that 
was in the printed agenda. The printed agenda referred to a grant of £150 
for the Life Saving Club whereas it should have read £130.

7



4

RESOLVED – 

That the Community Grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 
to the report.

The Chair thanked Councillors Campbell, Bourne and Tyson-Payne for 
reviewing the applications.

102. FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Consideration was given to a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 12) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s capital and revenue budget.

RESOLVED –

(1) £125,231 to be allocated to the Pirelli Park project from 
developer contributions;

(2) £68,049 to be allocated to the Leah Garden Play Area from 
developer contributions;

(3) £65,912 to be allocated to the Cheriton Road Play Area from 
developer contributions;

(4) £12,200 to be allocated to the Grantham Green Play Area from 
reallocation of developer’s contributions from the wider 
Grantham Green improvement project;

(5) £5,000 to be allocated to the Senior Sports and Health Officer 
post from the revenue reserve; 

(6) £3,750 to be allocated to the Friday Night Football Project from 
the revenue reserve; and

(7) The Draft Local Area Action Plan shown in Appendix 1 was 
approved.

103. PLANNING APPEALS

The Head of Legal Services reported:-

(a)  that the following appeals had been lodged:-
 
1 Robin Square, Eastleigh, SO50 9JZ
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
retention of 8-bedroom HMO Use Class - Sui Generis (change of use from 
C4 HMO).

8



5

 
49 Westfield Road, Eastleigh, SO53 3GX
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the erection 
of a two-storey 3 bedroom detached property on land adjacent to 49 
Westfield Road.
 
(b)  that the following appeals had been allowed:-
 
66 Kipling Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9DY
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant permission for a change of 
use of building from C4 HMO (up to 6 occupants) to 11 occupants (sui 
generis)

RESOLVED –

That the report be noted.

M6447

9



This page is intentionally left blank



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 17 March 2020.

Application Number: F/19/87086
Case Officer: Dawn Errington
Received Date: Thursday 19 December 2019
Site Address: Land South of Chestnut Avenue/North Stoneham Park, 

Stoneham Lane, Eastleigh, SO50 9HT
Applicant: Highwood Homes
Proposal: Erection of 65 dwellings (additional to the 1,100 dwellings 

granted under outline permission O/15/76023), public open 
space, landscaping, boundary treatments, roads and 
footways, car parking, drainage and other supporting works 
and infrastructure - Stage 3 (land previously identified as part 
of parcel 5A of outline permission and subject to subsequent 
approval for 39 dwellings under permission ref. 
F/17/81165)(application is for subsequent consent to EIA 
development with EIA addendum)

Recommendation:
PERMIT subject to

i) S106 agreement for terms identified in report 
ii) Consideration of outstanding consultation responses/amended documents
iii) The following CONDITIONS AND REASONS (with delegated authority to 

Head of Housing and Development to update if necessary)

1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered:  19.095.001; 19.095.002; 19.095.100 REVA; 
19.095.101REVA; 19.095.102REVA; 19.095.200REVA; 19.095.201; 
19.095.202REVA; 19.095.203; 19.095.204REVA; 19.095.205; 
10.095.210REVA; 19.095.211REVA; 19.095.212REVA; 19.095.213REVA; 
19.095.214REVA; 19.095.215REVA; 19.095.216REVA; 19.095.217REVA; 
19.095.218REVA; 19.095,219REVA; DD145301REVD; DD145L31REVD; 
DD145L36REVD; DD145L36REVD; DD145L42REVC; DD145L47REVB; 
DD145L56REVB; 19-308-001REVA; 19-308-002REVA; 19-308-003REVA; 
19-308-004REVA; 19-308-005REVA; 19-308-006; 19-308-007; 19-308-008; 
19-308-011; 19-308-012; 19-308-013; 19-308-014; 19-308-015; 19-308-016; 
19-308-017; 19-308-018; 19-308-019; 19-308-020; 19-308-21
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from 
the date of this decision. Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

3. The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved 
site Design Code July 2017. Reason: To ensure a comprehensive approach 
to high quality design across the site. 

11

Agenda Item 7



4. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision and 
management of a 15-metre wide buffer zone alongside any existing ditches 
and watercourses on the site shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme and any subsequent amendments 
shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority. The buffer zone 
scheme shall be free from built development including lighting, domestic 
gardens and formal landscaping; Unless otherwise agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority, the scheme shall include:

 Plans showing the extent and layout of the buffer zone
 Details of any proposed planting scheme (native species) 
 Details demonstrating how the buffer zone will be protected during 

development and managed/maintained over the longer term including 
adequate financial provision and named body responsible for 
management and a detailed management plan 

 No additional or amended footpaths or lighting within this 15-metre 
buffer zone. 

Reason: Development that encroaches on watercourses and ditches has a 
potentially severely impact on their ecological value. Without such buffers the 
movement of wildlife can be limited and appropriately planted and managed 
buffer zones can help reduce impact of diffuse pollution.

5. No development shall start until details and samples of all external facing and 
roofing materials in respect of buildings have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development must then accord 
with these approved details. Reason: To ensure that the external appearance 
of any building is satisfactory.

6. No development shall start until the following final details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development must then accord with these approved details:

i) External lighting
ii) Electric vehicle charging provisions
iii) Swift boxes

           v) Final site levels and retaining structures
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of any building is 
satisfactory.

7. Construction of the development shall not commence until final details of the 
proposed means of foul and surface water sewerage disposal have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Southern Water. These details shall be in accordance with 
the provisions of the submitted Surface Water Strategy and Design Statement 
(Odyssey December 2019), to include 3 stages of filtration, and the Foul 
Drainage Strategy (Odyssey, December 2019) and shall be fully implemented 
prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained, 
maintained and managed in accordance with the approved management and 

12



maintenance proposals. Written verification of completion of the approved 
works shall be provided by an appropriately qualified professional within 3 
months of first occupation of the development. Reason: To ensure satisfactory 
provision of foul and surface water drainage. 

8.  Within 3 months of the commencement of development, a final landscaping 
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall cover all hard surfacing and soft landscaping, 
including trees, tree pits and boundary treatments, and shall provide details of 
timings for all landscaping and any future maintenance. The works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved plans and to the appropriate 
British Standard. Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality 
and to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents.

9. For a period of no less than 5 years after planting, any trees or plants which 
are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the same 
species, size and number as originally approved in the landscaping scheme.
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality.

10.The details and provisions of the submitted Landscape and Ecology 
Management Strategy (Deacon Design 12.12.19 Revision), Landscape 
General Arrangement Location Plan, Public Open Space Adoption Plan, 
Landscape General Arrangement Plan, Stage 3 Tree and POS Planting Plan, 
Stage 3 Boundary Treatment Strategy Plan and Phase 3 Illustrative 
Landscape Masterplan shall be fully implemented unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To ensure satisfactory 
landscape and ecology provisions. 

11.The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the submitted Reptile Translocation, Mitigation, Management and Monitoring 
Strategy July 2017, Otter Protection and Enhancement Strategy July 2017, 
Bat Mitigation, Enhancement and Monitoring Strategy July 2017 and 
Dormouse Mitigation Strategy July 2017 Reason: To ensure the protection of 
protected species.

12.Water vole surveys shall be undertaken before any work to waterways and/or 
ditches on the site commence. If water voles are found the applicant shall 
provide appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures which shall be agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To ensure protection of 
water voles and their habitat

13.Prior to the first occupation of any residential property, details of the proposed 
fenestration and alternative ventilation system to be provided to each 
habitable room shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  
The submitted details shall include a demonstration that good acoustic 
conditions should be achieved within each habitable room, supported by test 
results for the proposed fenestration and alternative ventilation system.  The 
approved fenestration and alternative ventilation system shall be installed 

13



prior to the first occupation of the residential property and thereafter 
maintained.  Reason: in the interests of amenity.

14.The sound emitted from any fixed plant or equipment installed on the site shall 
not in combination, exceed a rating level LAr, 60 minutes  of 49dBA at any time 
between 07:00 hours and 23:00 hours or a rating level of  LAr, 15 minutes 40dBA 
at any time between 23:00hours and 07:00 hours.  Assessment of compliance 
with this condition shall be conducted in accordance with BS4142.   Reason: 
in the interests of amenity 

15.The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the submitted North Stoneham Park Stage 2 and 3 Remediation Strategy, 
Ramboll July 2017 and shall not be occupied / brought into use until there has 
been submitted to the LPA verification by competent person that any 
remediation scheme required has been implemented fully in accordance with 
the approved details (unless varied with the written permission of the LPA in 
advance of implementation). Unless agreed in writing with the LPA such 
verification shall comply with the guidance contained in CLR11 and EA 
Guidance for the Safe Development of Housing on Land Affected by 
Contamination - R&D Publication 66: 2008. Typically, such a report would 
comprise: 

a. A description of the site and its background, and summary of relevant site 
information,
b. a description of the remediation objectives and remedial works carried out 
c. verification data, including - data (sample locations/analytical results, as 
built drawings of the implemented scheme, photographs of the remediation 
works in progress, etc.
d. Certificates demonstrating that imported and / or material left in situ is free 
from contamination, gas / vapour membranes have been installed correctly. 
Thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in accordance with 
the scheme approved. Reason: To minimise the risks of pollution and to 
ensure the site is satisfactorily de-contaminated. 

16.Before the development is first occupied, details of all crime prevention 
measures in respect of this phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development of that phase shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: In the interest of crime prevention. 

17.  Prior to the occupation of any building within this phase of the development 
(or in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority), the following shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: For residential development as built 
stage SAP data and as built stage water calculator confirming energy 
efficiency and the predicted internal mains water consumption to achieve 
 In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a 19% improvement of dwelling 
emission rate over the target emission rate as set in the 2013 Building 
Regulations

14



 In respect of water consumption, a maximum predicted internal mains water 
consumption of 105 litres/person/day. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved details. Reason: To 
support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across the site; in 
line with the guidance set out in the Government’s Ministerial Statement of 25 
March 2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities should, from the date 
of its publication, take into account the government’s intentions in the 
statement and not set conditions with requirements above a Code level 4 
equivalent”

18.  Details of all street furniture for the public areas shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation. 
Reason: in the interests of amenity. 

19.The development must accord with the arboricultural report reference 
JFA10259 5B/5C. No excavation, demolition or development related works 
shall commence until the tree protection fencing and ground protection has 
been installed as per the tree protection plan contained within the report. 
Once installed, no access by vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, 
fuels, soil or other materials shall take place within the protected area. Tree 
protection measures shall be retained in their approved form for the duration 
of the work. Reason - To retain and protect the existing trees which form an 
important part of the amenity of the locality.

20.  No development shall take place until a detailed method statement for either 
the removal or the long-term management/control of any invasive non-native 
species on the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The method statement shall include proposed measures 
that will be used to prevent the spread of invasive species during any 
operations e.g. mowing, strimming or soil movement. It shall also contain 
measures to ensure that any soils brought to the site are free of the 
seeds/root/stem of any invasive plant covered under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981, as amended. Development shall proceed in 
accordance with the approved method statement. Reason: To prevent the 
spread of invasive non-native species. Without it, avoidable damage could be 
caused to the nature conservation value of the site.

21.  Prior to the commencement of development, details of paving and 
construction within the root zones of retained trees to be retained in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars in respect of that phase 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
These details shall be in accordance with the British Standards Institution 
Code of practice for trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
Recommendations British Standard BS 5837:2012 . The development of each 
phase must not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
approved details. Reason: To conserve the trees adjacent to and within the 
proposed development. 

22.No trenches for services or drains shall be sited within the Root Protection 
Area (RPA) as per BS5837:2012 of any trees that are to be retained on or 

15



adjoining the site. Reason: To protect the health and stability of the trees to be 
retained. 

23.  Prior to the commencement development, details of a technology and 
communication strategy for the provision of broadband, fibre optic and audio 
visual technology within that phase must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The infrastructure must then be 
provided for use upon first occupation of the buildings hereby permitted within 
that phase and retained thereafter. Reason: To improve the opportunities to 
work from home and to reduce the proliferation of individual masts, aerials, 
satellite dishes and wiring on flatted and commercial blocks in the interests of 
visual amenity.

24.No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall 
take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process. Reason: 
To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 

25.  No construction or demolition work shall take place except between 0800 
hours to 1800 hours Mondays to Fridays and 0900 hours to 1300 hours on 
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To protect the 
amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings.

26.  Each housing unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the areas 
shown on the approved plan for the parking and turning of vehicles for that 
unit (including those areas marked out on the plan as being unallocated) shall 
have been made available, surfaced and marked out, with markings to be 
agreed beforehand by the Local Planning Authority. The parking areas shall 
then be permanently retained and reserved for that purpose at all time and no 
unallocated parking shall be allocated to individual plots at any time. Reason: 
To make provision for off-street parking for the purpose of highway safety.

27.No private parking management scheme shall be implemented on the site and 
no additional or altered vehicle parking areas shall be provided on any part of 
the development without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. Reason: In the interests of proper planning.

28.The roads and footways within each phase must be laid out and made up in 
accordance with the specification, programme and details for that phase 
approved and in any event shall be so constructed that, by no later than the 
time any building erected on the land is occupied, there shall be a direct 
connection from it to an existing highway. The final carriageway and footway 
surfacing must be completed within six months from the date upon which the 
erection is commenced of the penultimate dwelling or building within the 
phase for which permission is hereby permitted. Reason: To ensure that the 
roads are constructed to a standard which will enable them to be taken over 
as publicly maintainable highways. 

29.Written verification by an appropriate consultant confirming that the 
construction of all unadopted roads, footpaths and cyclepaths within the 

16



development is in accordance with the approved plans and details shall be 
provided to the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the 
60th dwelling unit.  Reason: to ensure that the development is provided to an 
appropriate standard.

30.Each housing unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the provisions 
shown on the approved plans for the storage of bicycles and refuse bins for 
that unit shall have been made available. These shall then be permanently 
retained and reserved for that purpose at all time. Reason: To make provision 
for bicycles and refuse storage.

31.Before development commences, a Construction and Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include the following details:

i. the timing and phasing of the works and lorry routing 
ii. the incidental recovery of minerals for construction works;
iii. the location of temporary site buildings and plant and material storage areas, 
iv. the arrangement for construction deliveries,
v. dust impacts and controls
vi. temporary construction car parking both on and off-site, 
vii. temporary lighting ,
viii. mud on the road mitigation, 
ix. a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 

activities (to include piling);
x. the protection of pedestrian routes during construction, 
xi. storage of and collection of waste
xii. controls for the volume and the quality of surface water runoff (including 

treatments for pollution),
xiii.  watercourse crossings and any proposed diversions (temporary or 

permanent), 
xiv. a map or plan showing habitat areas to be specifically protected (identified in 

the ecological reports) during the works and any necessary mitigation for 
protected species to include:

 The timing of the works 
  Watercourse crossings and any proposed diversions (temporary or 

permanent)
 The measures to be used during construction in order to minimise 

environmental impact of the works on habitats (considering both 
disturbance and pollution prevention)

xv. Information on the persons/bodies responsible for particular activities 
associated with the construction phase

xvi.   The provisions for the re-use of minerals from the development site.
All works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved CEMP. 
Reason: in the interests of amenity, highway safety and protection of 
ecological features. 

Notes: 

17



Eastleigh Borough Council has taken all environmental information including the 
Environmental Statement dated February 2015, the Non-Technical Summary dated 
February 2015 and the Addendum to the Environmental Statement dated December 
2019 into consideration in reaching this decision. In dealing with the application, 
Eastleigh Borough Council has in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. 

There are no significant adverse effects resulting from the development, and the 
above conditions provide for mitigation/monitoring to prevent significant adverse 
effects for ecology and drainage.  Consultations are summarised in the report to the 
Eastleigh Local Area Committee 17.3.20.

The applicant’s attention is drawn to the requirement within the British Standard 
‘Code of practice for safe use of cranes’ for crane operators to consult the 
aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is 
explained further in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes and Other Construction Issues’, available 
at http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-
2016.pdf
 

Report:

The application has been referred to Committee because it is for major development 
subject to Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

Background

1. As part of the wider planning permission for the North Stoneham Park (Land 
South of Chestnut Avenue) granted in 2016, residential development was 
approved in principle on this parcel of land.  Subsequently, a detailed 
permission for 39 dwelling units was permitted in 2018 and these were in 
addition to the 1100 units originally approved.  This permission has not been 
implemented and this application represents an alternative scheme to that 
permitted with a further uplift in the number of units.

2. The outline permission for the comprehensive site is for 1100 dwellings, a 
care home, new local centre including primary school, pre-school, community 
building, offices and public open space on land south of Chestnut Avenue. 
Associated with this, permission was also granted for replacement playing 
pitches and facilities at land south of Junction 5 M27, an extension to 
Lakeside Country Park and a new cycleway/footway along Stoneham Lane.  
Alongside an overall masterplan concept plan setting out the key land uses, 
accesses and development principles, the outline application included 
parameter plans for access, building heights, density and public open 
space/ecology. These, and the Section 106 agreement and outline permission 
conditions, have informed the subsequent reserved matters proposals and 
also the full applications for additional dwellings (Stages 3 and 4) which came 
about as a result of the detailed design process having established that a 
relatively small increase in units could be accommodated on the parts of the 
site to be developed and approved at outline stage, whilst still meeting design 
and space standards. To address phasing matters, conditions of the outline 

18

http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf


permission and obligations within the S106 agreement have been 
subsequently varied since the grant of outline permission. 

3. The total number of proposed homes for the North Stoneham Park 
development within Eastleigh Borough is now 1,183. 

Relevant Planning History

 Outline permission O/15/76023 for 1100 dwellings, care home, school, 
local centre and associated infrastructure granted January 2106

 Detailed permission F/17/81165 for 39 dwellings and public open 
space granted 2018 (Stage 3)

 Reserved matters permission R/17/79892 for 560 dwellings and public 
open space granted May 2017 (Stage 1)

 Reserved matters permission RM/17/81168 for 514 dwellings and open 
space granted 2018 (Stage 2)

 Reserved matters for local centre, including 26 dwellings granted

Environmental Impact Assessment

4. Because the original outline permission for 1100 dwellings and infrastructure 
was subject to Environmental Impact Assessment, this further application for 
can be considered to be development subsequent to this assessment, and 
therefore the EIA procedures are followed again.  The EIA assessment forms 
part of this written report and an Environmental Statement (ES) addendum 
has been submitted, all in accordance with the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The original ES 
should be viewed in conjunction with the ES addendum.  The application was 
referred to the Secretary of State but not called in for a public inquiry. 

5. In addition to the Environmental Statement Addendum chapters on Ecology, 
Highways and Traffic, Noise, Air Quality and Lighting, the following reports 
and technical assessments are submitted:

 Design & Access Statement
 Planning Statement inc Affordable Housing Statement
 Accommodation Schedule 
 Foul Drainage Strategy and Design Statement
 Surface Water Strategy and Design Statement 
 Landscape and Ecology Management Strategy
 Reptile Translocation, Mitigation, Management and Monitoring Plan
 Bat Mitigation, Enhancement and Monitoring Strategy
 Otter Protection and Enhancement Strategy 
 Dormouse Mitigation Strategy
 Contaminated Land Remediation Strategy 
 Archaeology Statement
 Arboricultural Impact Assessment & Method Statement 
 Transport Statement and Travel Plan
 Noise Impact Assessment

19



The site and its surroundings

6. The land south of Chestnut Avenue development site (now more commonly 
referred to as North Stoneham Park) lies to the immediate south of the south-
western developed part of Eastleigh and extends to 84.7 hectares. The whole 
site primarily comprised a mix of agricultural pasture and recreational sports 
grounds.  The site parcels are subdivided and bounded by hedgerows and 
tree lines and include a number of watercourses and parkland trees. There is 
a public footpath which runs north-south on the alignment of an historic 
carriage drive which is within Stage 1 of the development site. 

7. Chestnut Avenue to the north is a primary road linking Chandlers Ford to the 
west and Southampton Road to the east. The strategic site is in part 
separated from this road by the Chestnut Avenue SINC and public open 
space. Stoneham Lane bounds the Stage 1 part of the site to the east and 
provides the transport link to the M27 junction 5. 

8. Park Farm, which is within the Test Valley administrative area, lies 
immediately to the west of the strategic site and includes a listed garden wall 
and a former coach house. St Nicolas Church, Stoneham Lane and the former 
rectory (now offices) are also nearby listed buildings, as are dwellings on 
Chestnut Avenue and Magpie Lane. Southampton Golf Club lies 
approximately 90m to the south west of the application site, separated from 
the site by Home Wood.

9. This Stage 3 full application site adjoins but excludes areas approved at the 
now completed Stage 1 reserved matters stage for the western play area and 
public open space and also the Stage 2 reserved matters site which is under 
construction. Further to the south west is the site for the new local centre, a 
primary school, offices and a landmark care home building (which is subject to 
a separate application on this agenda). 

10.This c2.4ha Stage 3 application site for 65 dwellings adjoins and is partly 
within woodland, but is primarily pasture and formal recreation space, with 
hedgerows and trees on boundaries. At the south/west end of the Stoneham 
site it lies north of Kennel Copse, which is a designated Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation but not Ancient Woodland, and east of Home Wood 
SINC, which is managed by Forestry England. This woodland provides visual 
containment for this western part of the strategic site.  The Stage 3 site would 
be served by new access roads linking to a new estate road (Highwood 
Avenue) running between Stoneham Lane and Chestnut Avenue.

Description of application 

11.Stage 3 relates to part of “Parcel 5A” as identified in the outline permission 
and which has now been split between the Stage 2 and 3 applications. It fits 
within the approved masterplan for the whole site which identifies the areas 
for development and areas for open space etc. 

20



12.The application proposes 65 dwellings (38 houses and 27 flats) of which 23 
(35%) would be affordable dwellings, provided through Vivid. The dwellings 
would comprise a mix of 2-3 bedroomed 2 storey houses of which the majority 
are terraced or semi-detached, whilst the 3-storey 1 and 2-bedroomed flats 
proposed are to enable private rent opportunities. The private and affordable 
dwellings mix is as follows: 9 x 1bed flats (6 private, 3 affordable rent); 24 x 2-
bed (12 private flats, 6 affordable rent flats, 2 affordable rent houses, 4 shared 
ownership houses) and 32 x 3-bed (24 private houses, 4 affordable rent 
houses and 4 shared ownership houses).

13.The proposals include provision of an area of public open space to the east of 
the site, which complements the open space and children’s play provision 
granted under the Stage 1 reserved matters permission. As part of a wider 
network, these will combine with other small pockets of informal open space 
and the green infrastructure, aligned with new pedestrian and cycle links 
which are provided through the site. The proposals, as with other stages, are 
“landscape-led”, retaining existing watercourses and their buffers, hedges and 
trees where possible and appropriate and providing extensive new planting. 
This application proposes the removal of 29 small/U-grade trees and 1 group, 
to be replaced by c126 new trees and landscaping. The woodland SINCS 
have minimum 15m buffers between their edges and new development and 
hedges and waterways are also retained and protected. All the buffer and 
public open space areas are to be adopted by EBC.

14.Car parking, provided to EBC standards, is allocated to plots and 
supplemented by visitor parking spaces. 

15.  Flats in 3 blocks are located within a pocket of cleared (unprotected) 
woodland and have their own distinct character. 

16.The submitted plans were formally amended on 25.2.20 to take account of 
consultation responses and officer advice. Amendments include a redesign of 
the layout for the flatted development, other minor changes to the layouts and 
enhanced parking provisions and landscaping. 

Consultation Responses

17.HCC Highways – no objection in principle; additional information will be 
required for S278 adoption of roads and footways; visitor parking appears 
short and some amendments to parking spaces and refuse servicing 
suggested.  Trip generation from additional development would have 
negligible impact and is not a justifiable reason for objection on highway 
grounds, but contributions sought for infrastructure improvements.

18.HCC Archaeologist – conditions for outline permission apply
19.HCC Flood and Water Team – further information required
20.HCC Minerals and Waste Team – site in area of minerals safeguarding.  

Recovered minerals could be re-used on site and methods for this should be 
agreed in the construction management plan or similar.

21.HCC Childrens Services – no contributions to schools required.

21



22.Southern Water – sewers are responsibility of SSE Water.  
Connection/discharge points and flow rates must comply with agreement 
terms.

23.Natural England – to comment on Habitats Regulations Appropriate 
Assessment

24.Environment Agency – no objection
25.Test Valley Borough Council – no comments received
26.Environmental Health Officer – no objection subject to conditions
27.Housing – error in Planning Statement to be corrected to confirm 23 

affordable units.  Mix should include 3 bed dwellings for affordable rent and 
should be changed. No objection to amended plans.

28.Tree Officer – 11 additional trees to be removed which are either small or in 
poor condition.  Development is close to but outside root protection areas.  
Footpath to be constructed using “no dig” solutions. No objection subject to 
conditions.

29.Design and Landscape Team – further amendments sought to scheme to 
improve visual impact and reduce dominance of parking and roads. 

30.Ecology Officer – seeking greater than 15m buffer to Home Wood SINC, 
which is also a designated reptile receptor area.  Suggest additional cellular 
storage tank use in Sustainable Drainage.  Reports need to be updated. 
Comments on amended plans/reports to be reported.

31.Direct Services – no objection
32.Asset Management – public open space adoption proposals noted and will 

need full details
33.West Hants CCG – contributions towards enhanced local health service 

sought
34.Forestry England – no comments received
35.Highways England – no objections in respect of M27 junctions 4 and 5
36.National Planning Casework Unit – no comments
37.Southampton Airport – no objection
38.Sport England – no requirement to formally consider proposals

Representations Received

39.17 letters of objection on grounds of traffic impact, air and light pollution, 
visual impact (change from detached houses to flats), no need for further 
housing, lack of infrastructure, harm to wildlife, loss of trees/woodland and 
danger to safety of residents

40.Although not a formal consultee, the Southampton University Hospital Trust 
have made a representation seeking developer contributions.  Southampton 
Golf Club have raised concerns in respect of public use of Home Wood and 
potential trespass/agent of change concerns relating to ball strike and visual 
impact of development/additional dwellings not needed. Hampshire Swifts 
have sought provision of swift boxes. 

Policy Context and Designations for Site

 Outside defined urban edge in countryside
 Strategic Gap between Southampton and Eastleigh

22



 Within designated Land off Chestnut Avenue site commitment 
 Within catchment area of Solent and Southampton Water SPA and SAC and 

River Itchen SAC
 Tree Preservation Order 
 Solent recreational disturbance zone
  New Forest disturbance zone 
  Mineral Safeguarding Zone. 
  Eastleigh Landscape Character Area 6 (North Stoneham Park)
 HCC Historic Parks and Gardens Register

Development Plan relevant Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan 
Policies

 Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013) – Policy 15 seeks prior extraction 
of minerals

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) saved Policies:

 1.CO – countryside protection
 2.CO – strategic gap protection
 25.NC – Biodiversity protection
 26.NC – Biodiversity enhancement
 28.ES – Waste Collection and Recycling to be well located and designed
 32.ES – Pollution Control requirement
 34.ES – Energy and Climate Change provisions required
 36.ES – Lighting impacts to be minimised
 45.ES – Sustainable Drainage required
 59.BE – Design to high standard promoted taking account of context etc
 74.H – affordable housing
 100.T – sustainable location necessary to minimise transport impacts
 104.T – Parking to standards
 147.OS – public open space
 190.IN – infrastructure 
 191.IN – developer contributions

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 2029, July 2014

41.  The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 
in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. While this has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be considered 
to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this application. Policy 
E1 did, however, designate the Land South of Chestnut Avenue for 1100 
dwellings, school, local centre. 

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016- 2036

42.This Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st October 
2018 and the examination concluded in January 2020. The adoption of the 

23



Local Plan is anticipated in late 2020. Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it 
is considered that overall moderate weight can be attributed to it. The most 
relevant policies are:

 S3 – location of new housing
 DM2 – environmentally sustainable development
 DM9 – nature conservation
 DM23 - transport
 DM24 – lists Land South of Chestnut Avenue as existing greenfield 

housing site with planning permission
 DM27 – seeks increase in supply of specialist and accessible housing
 in sustainable locations, close to facilities and well-integrated into local 

community
 DM 28 – affordable housing
 DM31 – seeks higher national access standards
 DM32 – new dwellings to meet Nationally Prescribed Space Standards
 DM37 – funding infrastructure
 DM1 – general criteria for new development

43.Supplementary Planning Documents

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

(January 2009)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 

Development (March 2009)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008, 

updated 2010)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Biodiversity (December 2009)

National Planning Policy Framework 2019

44.The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. It sets out a general 
presumption in favour of sustainable development (the three dimensions of 
which are economic, social and environmental) and states that development 
proposals which accord with the development plan should be approved without 
delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are 
out-of-date planning permission should be granted unless the adverse impacts 
of the development would outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the 
Framework indicate development should be restricted. Local plan policies that 
do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF 
requires that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the 
closer the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight that may be given. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing 
within each local authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a 

24



tilted balance in favour of the development applies. Agent of Change principles 
protect existing businesses.

National Planning Practice Guidance 

45.Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 
of planning applications. 

Policy Commentary

46.Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require planning applications 
to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan (policies detailed 
above) unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

47.The relevant policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which 
this application will be assessed with particular regard to: the relevant planning 
policies and the principle of development; the form, layout and design of that 
proposed; its impact upon the street scene and character of the surrounding 
area; impact upon trees, nature conservation and biodiversity; environmental 
sustainability; parking and highway issues; drainage and any impact upon the 
amenity of neighbouring properties.

Principle of the Development

48.Albeit the site remains in countryside and strategic gap in the adopted EBLP 
2001-2011, the extant outline and detailed planning permissions for the site 
as part of the comprehensive proposals for Land South of Chestnut Avenue is 
an overriding material consideration which established that in principle 
residential development in this location is acceptable.  The now superseded 
EBLP Review Policy E1 was a site-specific allocation for the site for a new 
community which included this application site and the Stage 3 site does not 
extend the approved developable area boundaries or “red line” site area. 
Wider issues of highways impact and transport provisions, impact on heritage 
and minerals assets, ecology and its mitigation, recreational impact, flood risk, 
loss of existing pitches, contaminated land, noise, air quality and the level of 
affordable housing and public open space were considered at the outline 
stage and covered by submission of documents as part of the outline 
application, conditions attached to the outline permission, or obligations 
contained within the associated S106 legal agreement. The minor increase in 
development impacts from the additional 65 units have been assessed in the 
reports accompanying the application, including the Environmental Impact 
Assessment Addendum (containing chapters on ecology, landscape and 
visual impacts, highways and traffic, noise, air quality and lighting), and there 
are no technical constraints which would prejudice provision of the additional 
dwellings. This site has already been committed for development and the 
more efficient use of the land is supported in principle by the NPPF and would 
assist in further 5 year housing supply delivery.

Sustainable Development

25



49.  The outline application considered matters of sustainability and concluded 
that the development would fulfil an economic role by providing employment 
opportunities and expanding the quality and choice of housing, a social role 
by providing for clearly needed market and affordable housing together with 
new social and community facilities, and, with mitigation, a satisfactory 
environmental role. This application relating to a small part of the outline site 
is also sustainable and contributes towards the provision of supporting 
infrastructure. The specific details are all elements of the Design Code for the 
development which, alongside the site masterplan, guide the development. 
The Design Code sets out rules and standards for design as well as providing 
consistency through phases.

Layout and Parking 

50.The proposed layout for Stage 3 reflects the indicative and parameter plan 
details submitted at outline stage, albeit that the extensive design exercise 
which followed on from the outline permission has resulted in more efficient 
site layouts than first envisaged and thus an uplift in dwelling numbers. The 
site layout proposes a hierarchy of roads, with the most northerly plots 
fronting a key perimeter block road and leading off this a series of small cul-
de-sacs, including one serving 3 buildings for flats within woodland. The 
eastern corner contains an area of public open space which adjoins the 
Kennel Copse POS provided in Stage 1 and running through this and then 
westwards adjacent retained woodland and a watercourse is a safe 
recreational path which then runs into Home Wood. The western part of the 
site also contains areas for sustainable drainage, protection the watercourse, 
woodland buffers and new tree planting. As per the outline plans, the site is 
accessed via the new link road running between Stoneham Lane and 
Chestnut Avenue. Dwellings overlook the open space, footways and parking 
areas and the flats provide good natural surveillance of the woodland area 
and path.  All Quality Places SPD design standards for garden sizes and 
separation distances are met and all properties will meet the internal space 
standards of the Nationally Described space standards.

51.The development has been provided with parking meeting the minimum 
standards set down in the Council’s Residential Parking SPD. The majority of 
dwellings have on-plot parking, and for those that do not and for the flats, 
parking is provided within parking courts. Whilst the preference is for fully 
allocated parking, given the known issue of unallocated spaces being 
allocated and there then being unsufficient parking overall, the matter is 
covered by condition which can be enforced if necessary. 

52.Subject to amendments which improve the parking and access road for the 
flats to enable a more attractive central area, a less-parking dominated 
scheme, and for other minor changes, it is considered therefore that the 
proposals would give rise to an acceptable form of development with respect 
to parking and layout. This could be achieved with a better balance between 
buildings, parking and landscaping.

26



Scale and Density

53.The proposed building heights in part accord with the outline permission’s 
approved Building Heights Parameter Plan, however, the 3 storey flats are 
higher that the two storeys first envisaged.  Careful consideration of this 
concludes that this has no significant additional visual impact from any views, 
including those from public footpaths and the introduction of flats in this part of 
the Stoneham site would add new visual interest to the street scene, rather 
than detract from it. Overall the density of housing, at c30dph, is in line with 
that envisaged at outline stage for this small part of the overall site. The range 
and distribution of properties with respect to their scale is considered 
appropriate for the Stage 3 the site as part of the whole.

Appearance and Design

54.  The key objective in terms of appearance and architectural design of the 
residential development is to deliver housing which reflects the variety of built 
form typical to Eastleigh and the site’s specific history and landscape. In order 
to provide some variety across this large development, it has been divided 
into a number of character areas with different use of scale, house styles, 
detailing and landscaping, however the overriding architectural style is 
representative of the Inter War semidetached styles and Victorian vernacular 
in appearance.

55.  The Design Code for the estate and Design and Access Statement recognise 
the importance of local built character and also the woodland edge nature of 
parts of the site.  Whilst the original Character Area concept for this particular 
woodland edge part of the site was for low density detached and semi-
detached dwellings including elevations with rustic timber cladding, orange 
clay colour roof tiles and timber car ports, the provision of flats in appropriately 
designed buildings and surrounding spaces can also achieve the objective of 
creating a softer landscaped edge to the site which is not in private rear 
gardens.  To ensure that this is achieved, the scheme has been enhanced 
through plan amendments which pull the flats away from the surrounding 
woodland and avoid car-dominated views of their central communal area. 
These do need some refinement to fully address Design Officer concerns and 
further amendments are due. The flats themselves would be timber-clad with 
champagne render and clay roof tiles which is an appropriate palette of 
materials for this woodland setting.   Conditions for final details are necessary, 
but subject to this and the further amendments, the scheme delivers a quality 
of design sufficient to meet the requirements of adopted policy 59.BE and the 
NPPF.

56.The remainder of the development which fronts or adjoins the perimeter road 
and the Stage 2 housing is in the form of two storey dwellings.  These reflect  
traditional local styles in size and appearance and would fit well within the 
street scene established by the Stage 2 reserved matters permission.

Landscape 

27



57.An overarching Green Infrastructure Strategy for the North Stoneham Park 
estate provides a multifunctional and integrated approach to the landscape, 
which alongside the large central park, provide a series of attractive and 
legible green spaces and enhanced habitat corridors. These help to conserve 
important elements of the site’s history (it is on the Hampshire list of Historic 
Gardens) and provide positive future enhancements and management.

58.Whilst there is some tree removal proposed for this Woodland Edge part of 
the site, the trees themselves are of low quality and the Council’s Tree Officer 
has raised no objection subject to conditions. Unlike Stage 1 to the east, the 
Stage 2 site has no Veteran trees but existing nearby SINC woodland and 
substantial hedges will be kept. Buffers of at least 15m from the edges of the 
Kennel Copse and Home Wood SINCs have also been provided. 

59.As with the road hierarchy, there is an associated landscape hierarchy. Strong 
formal tree and hedgerow- lined avenue approach along the spine road in 
Stages 1 and 2 give way to less formal tree, hedge and shrub planting along 
the perimeter block roads and within cul-de-sacs. Landscaping and other 
boundary treatments move from strong defensible treatments including 
railings and walls on the principal roads, around flats and terraces and public 
spaces to less formal planting on the more private areas.  Final hard 
surfacing, boundary treatments and fine landscaping details are also subject 
to conditions.  

 Affordable Housing

60.The S106 associated with the outline planning permission requires 35% of the 
dwellings to be affordable. This application seeks approval for an additional 
65 units of which 35% (23) are also required to be affordable and delivered 
via a housing association with 15 of these to be social rent and 8 to be shared 
ownership. This represents an increase of 9 affordable units compared with 
the previously approved Stage 3 scheme.  A S106 agreement would ensure 
delivery of this much-needed additional affordable accommodation. There is 
no Housing objection to the amended plans which also ensure compliance 
with policy DM28 of the Submitted EBLP and saved policy 74.H of the 
adopted EBLP. It is also intended that the remaining 42 units would be built 
for private rent, providing good quality accommodation in this housing sector.

Drainage and Flood Risk 

61.None of the site lies within designated flood zone and a comprehensive 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Scheme is proposed which not only protects and 
enhances existing watercourses and their surroundings and water quality, but 
ensures that run-off from the site does not exceed existing levels and an 
existing watercourse is protected. HCC Flood and Water Team have asked 
for some amendments and, subject to these and HCC’s response to them, the 
surface water drainage scheme is expected to be acceptable. Appropriate foul 
water provisions are also made.

Ecology 

28



62.There are no additional or cumulative effects likely which cannot be mitigated, 
and in this respect, further contributions towards the Solent Disturbance 
Mitigation Project, which provides protection for the migratory birds within the 
Solent and Southampton Water Special Protection Area, are included in the 
S106 heads of terms. Also included in the agreement is further funding 
towards the provision of public access to Home Wood and its management, 
which is part of a wider Forest Park scheme to provide an alternative to the 
New Forest as a recreational destination, thus reducing the impact on this 
protected area. If considered necessary, this scheme can include fencing to 
the adjacent golf course to prevent trespass.

63.Protected species, including bats, reptiles, water voles, otter and dormice, are 
protected by various mitigation and protection plans and related planning 
conditions. Subject to some amendments to submitted documents and plans 
to ensure mitigation and protection for this Stage 3 part, the development site 
delivers extensive ecological protection, mitigation and habitat creation and 
these provisions which are relevant to the application site are carried forward 
for this application and delivered through the recommended conditions. Whilst 
a greater than 15m buffer to the woodland may be desirable, it is not 
necessary for the protection of ecology on this particular site and was not 
required under the previous planning permission. Whilst there is not yet a 
legal requirement for Biodiversity Net Gain, the provisions of the various 
habitat creation and landscaping proposals ensure that there would be an 
overall improvement to biodiversity when also taking the wider site context 
into account.

64.The recent issue raised by Natural England in respect of the increase nutrient 
deposition in the coastal European sites (Solent Complex via the River Itchen) 
through foul sewage is, however, relevant and an Appropriate Assessment 
under the Habitats Regulations is necessary in addition to EIA.  Mitigation off-
site through the removal of land from agricultural use is provided and, as 
competent authority, Eastleigh Borough Council has undertaken the 
Appropriate Assessment on this basis with the conclusion that the impact can 
be satisfactorily mitigated. This assessment is currently with Natural England 
for their review.

Heritage 

65.There are no nationally designated assets on or in close proximity to the site. 
There are the Grade II* St Nicolas Church, the Grade II Listed walled garden 
for the former North Stoneham House, the Grade II Listed Stoneham Rectory 
and Gate Piers, and three Grade II Listed dwellings in Chestnut Avenue. 
Stoneham Park is on the Hampshire County Council register for Historic 
Parks and Gardens. The evolution and changes to the parkland from 
medieval deer park to degraded former formal parkland which had been 
designed with influences from Capability Brown was documented in the 
outline application submission and in other material where the negative 
impact of the loss of the now degraded former parkland was balanced against 
the opportunity for the central core of parkland to be retained, restored and 

29



positively managed. It is also intended that the public will be able to relate to 
the history of the site through a comprehensive public arts and information 
scheme. The increase in dwellings within the approved “built” area does not 
result in any harm to heritage assets.

Noise and Air Quality 

66.Noise impacts from roads and associated air quality impacts for future 
residents of the development have been assessed. The Stage 3 site is 
furthest from the busiest roads and their impacts would be negligible. Air 
quality mitigation for the site is provided under the outline permission.

 Traffic and Transport 

67.The additional 26 dwellings above the 39 already permitted would generate a 
predicted additional 13 AM and 14 PM peak traffic movements onto the local 
road network, using upgraded existing junctions and the new road junction 
and link road at Stoneham Lane. This would not result in a significant impact 
on these junctions or related safety, traffic noise and air quality. A 
comprehensive package of transport upgrades was secured under the outline 
permission and further funding is sought by HCC Highways in respect of the 
proposed additional dwellings. Sustainable transport measures are also 
extensive, including the new footway/cycleway between Southampton and 
Eastleigh along Stoneham Lane and new routes crossing the site and through 
the extended Lakeside Country Park and development Travel Plans. It is 
noted that the majority of residential objections relate to traffic, and HCC have 
been asked to update on Travel Plan and sustainable transport measures to 
ensure that these are fully implemented for existing and new residents in a 
timely manner. The bus service between Southampton and Eastleigh will also 
divert through the site once the link road between Chestnut Avenue and 
Stoneham Lane is open. 

Climate Change

68.  National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that all 
planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on the 
environment. The Environmental implications of this application are detailed 
throughout this report and proposed mitigations through conditions include 
requirements for low energy and water use infrastructure, extensive tree 
planting and landscaping, provisions for sustainable transport, sustainable 
urban drainage, and ecological protection and habitat enhancements.

69. In terms of EIA, the development is not considered likely to result in significant 
adverse effects on climate change.  

Human Health

70.Human health relating to noise and ground conditions has been considered 
and no significant adverse effects are likely.  Conditions are recommended 

30



where necessary.  The traffic and air quality impacts or any other possible 
impacts are also not considered significantly harmful to human health.

Planning Obligations

71. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policies 
74.H, 101.T, 147.OS, 165.TA and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of the Submission 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD, and 
the requirements of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations, there is a requirement for planning obligations to ensure on and 
off-site provision for facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the 
development, and to mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing 
facilities. This is in addition to the requisite on-site provision of affordable 
housing. The outline scheme delivers a comprehensive suite of community 
and environmental benefits and only the needs and impacts from the 
additional 65 units are now necessary to be addressed through planning 
obligations within a new Section 106 agreement. These consist provisions 
and contributions towards:

o 35% affordable housing 
o Home Wood public access and public art 
o Transport infrastructure
o Community infrastructure projects 
o Solent Disturbance Mitigation Project
o Local Health infrastructure provision
o Travel Plan
o Nitrogen deposition mitigation (tbc)

72.  The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure would 
comply with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 2010, in that the monies would go towards the projects 
which are directly related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably 
related in scale and kind to the proposed development. The contributions 
would be index-linked to ensure the contributions rise in line with the costs of 
providing the identified projects/measures. The obligations sought are 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms and to 
meet the needs generated by the new residents and the potential impact on 
existing services and facilities. 

73. In addition to the contributions towards local health infrastructure provided 
through the West Hants CCG, the Southampton University NHS Trust have 
requested contributions be secured  for the first three years of occupation of 
each dwelling to bridge the lag in funding of staff from other sources in 
response to the direct impact on, and cost to, their acute healthcare services 
as a result of additional pressure placed on the service by residents of this 
development. Using a cost / dwelling tariff, a contribution of  £62,531 is 
sought. Whilst the pressure of new development on the service is recognised, 
it is not unique to Eastleigh but experienced across the Trusts wider 
catchment area. All new development will place pressure on the service, and 

31



this pressure should be assessed and planned for at a strategic level (and not 
site by site basis) based on forecast housing growth within the catchment of 
the Trust. Whilst it is the view of officers that this important issue should be 
addressed at a strategic level and contributions are not secured as part of this 
development, Members of the committee may form a different view. 

Other material considerations 

74.Also of note is the latest position on the Government- required 5 year housing 
land supply. The published figure for November 2019 confirms that the 
Council currently has a 6.3 year supply. The need to deliver additional 
dwellings outside of planned sites is thus lessened, albeit that the permission 
for this site for 39 units is part of the supply. 
 

75.Southampton Golf Course have raised Agent of Change objections in that 
Hole 6 of the golf course lies approximately 90m southwest of the site and 
shares its northern boundary with Home Wood, with only post and wire 
fencing and they consider that the residents of the proposed development 
would use the adjoining Home Wood and then potentially trespass onto the 
golf course, so affecting the running of this business.  They also consider that 
there is a risk of mis-struck golf balls reaching Home Wood. Home Wood has 
been used by the public for many decades and the additional use/risks of 
trespass and injury in relation to occupants of the relatively small number of 
dwellings which are the subject of this application is not considered to be 
likely to be so substantial so as to cause harm to the business under the 
Agent of Change principles.  Sport England have not commented on the 
specific proposals, and the golf club asked to provide evidence of the existing 
problem. If necessary, new fencing can be considered in discussions with 
Forestry England and the landowners and the representation has been raised 
with them. 

Equalities Implications

76.Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. 
Section149 states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the equality
duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. 

77. It is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.

32



Conclusion

78.  Although a full application for 65 additional housing units, this scheme is 
considered to generally conform to the parameters identified at the outline 
permission stage and the application has demonstrated that it would be an 
appropriate form of development for this part of the Stoneham site and deliver 
additional private and affordable housing in a sustainable location which will 
add to the Council’s 5-year supply on an already committed site. 

79.The potential additional environmental impacts have been assessed against 
the 2017 EIA Regulations and the Environmental Impact Assessment 
undertaken concludes that the scheme will not result in likely significant 
environmental effects for any of the matters assessed above. Mitigation is 
provided where necessary.  The next steps following the grant of permission 
required by the EIA Regulations are publicity and notification to the Secretary 
of State of the decision. 

80.  The range of works, controls and mitigations detailed above would ensure 
that the scheme would constitute sustainable development on all three NPPF 
counts for which there is a presumption in favour, and accordingly planning 
permission is recommended subject to the consideration of any outstanding 
consultation response, theS106 agreement for terms identified in report and 
the recommended conditions (with delegated authority to Head of Housing 
and Development to update if necessary).

33



34



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 17 March 2020.

Application No: A/20/87179
Case Officer: Clare Martin
Received Date: Thursday 16 January 2020
Site Address: THE POINT, LEIGH ROAD, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9DE
Applicant: Sacha Lee
Proposal: Consent to display a public artwork.

Recommendation Consent

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: 01, 02, 03, 04, 05 & 06
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2 This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is subject 
to the five standard conditions set out in the Regulations.
a) No advertisement to be displayed without the permission of the owner 
of the site (this includes land or buildings where the advertisement is 
displayed), or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to give 
permission.
b) The siting or display of an advertisement is prohibited if it endangers 
anyone using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or 
aerodrome (civil or military), or would obscure or hinder the ready 
interpretation of any traffic sign, railway sign or aid to navigation by water 
or air. It also prohibits the siting or display of an advertisement that would 
hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or 
surveillance (such as closed circuit television cameras), or for measuring 
the speed of any vehicles (speed cameras or other speeding measuring 
devices. 
c) The advertisement and any land or building used for the purpose of its 
display to be maintained in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so that it 
does not impact the visual amenity of the site.
d) Any structure or hoarding used for the display of advertisements to be 
maintained in a safe condition that does not endanger the public.
e) Following the removal of advertisement the site shall be left in a 
condition that does not endanger the public and in a reasonably clean and 
tidy condition so that it does not impact the site's visual amenity.
Reason: To comply with the advertisement regulations.

3 The illumination of the consented art work shall be no greater than 600 
candela per square metres and no light source shall be visible from the 
highway.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

35

Agenda Item 8



Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council 
takes a positive approach to the handling of development proposals so as 
to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all 
proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.

Note to Applicant: The art work will be mounted on a locally listed building, 
which is recognised for its architectural, historical and amenity value at a 
local level. As such it is requested that the art works is secured using 
methods that avoid or minimise any damage to the brick work and if 
fixings are required these should be directly into the mortar. 

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee as it is an Eastleigh Borough 
Council scheme.  

Description of Application

1. The application is for consent to display a public artwork which will be 
mounted on the western wall of the point building. The artwork consists of 
20mm steel discs covering an area of 2.66m and spelling out the word you 
in dark lettering with a light background. 

Site and its Surroundings

2. The site is used by the point as a theatre and arts venue. The site has a 
small number of signs predominantly at the Points main Leigh Road 
entrance with some secondary signage facing Romsey. The building itself 
is of high historical and architectural importance and is a locally listed 
building.

3. The site is a key building at the entrance to Eastleigh Town Centre siting 
between Romsey Road and the recreation ground. The surrounding 
buildings are predominantly commercial with some nearby community uses 
and contain a mixture of signage.  There is also further public art and 
community structures within the recreation ground.  

Relevant Planning History

 A/08/61987 - Display of 1 no banner sign – Consent (2008)

 A/04/52797 - Display of two banners at first floor level – Consent (2004)

Representations Received

4. None

36



Consultation Responses

5. Highways Officer (HCC) – No objection, subject to a condition limiting 
the illumination to no more than 600 candela per metres square and no 
light source being visible from the highway. 

6. Built Heritage Consultant – No objection

7.  The Point or Former Town Hall is classed as a Heritage Asset in that it is 
Locally Listed by virtue of being authentic, substantially unaltered and 
retaining the majority of it’s original features. It has local significance from 
both an architectural and historical perspective by being a good example of 
the local civic building style with detail and craftsmanship to match from a 
time of economic and social significance for the town.

8. As an arts centre it is largely reliant on public attendance and involvement 
for income and funding and thereby the health of this asset. Attraction of 
prospective audiences of all ages is a continual issue I imagine, so 
something of this nature will assist and be an interesting work of art work in 
its own right.

9. The piece of artwork is to be fixed to the west side elevation and is very 
slim so will not detract from the main frontage and the adjacent projecting 
brick chimney breast will still stand proud ameliorating it’s presence from 
the building’s perspective particularly when seen from the west.

10.Given that this permission is only temporary, the fixings need not cause 
irreparable damage to the building fabric or the item be obvious from the 
front elevation of the building and will assist in bringing in income to sustain 
the building, therefore no objection is raised.

11.Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

 Within Built-up Area Boundary
 Within Eastleigh Town Centre 
 Locally Listed Building

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 
59.BE, 67.BE, 125.TC & 175.LB.

 The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) Policies: 
DM1, DM12 & E3.
The Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State on 31st October 
2018 and the examination hearing has taken place. Given the status of 
the submitted plan it is considered that moderate weight can be 
attributed to it.

 The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2011-2029)

37



The Local Plan was submitted for examination in July 2014, but the 
plan was found unsound. As such the plan has extremely limited weight 
in the determination of this application.

National Planning Policy Framework

12.At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (the 
‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight 
in the determination of planning applications. The Planning Practice 
Guidance provides additional guidance in support of the Framework and 
should be afforded weight in the consideration of planning applications.

National Planning Practice Guidance 

13.Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the 
consideration of planning applications. 

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background

14.Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:-
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must 
be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise."

15.Regulation 3 (1)(2)(3) (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Control of Advertisement) Regulations 2007 states:-

16."A local planning authority shall exercise their powers under these 
Regulations only in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking 
account of any material factors, and in particular:

(a) In the case of amenity, the general characteristics of the locality, 
including the presence of any feature of historic, architectural, 
cultural or similar interest, disregarding, if they think fit, any 
advertisement being displayed there;

(b) In the case of public safety:
(i) The safety of any person who may use any road, railway, 
waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome;
(ii) Whether any display of advertisements is likely to obscure, or 
hinder the ready interpretation of, any road traffic sign, railway 
signal or aid to navigation by water or air.

17. In determining an application for consent for the display of advertisements, 
or considering whether to make an order revoking or modifying a consent, 
the local planning authority may have regard to any material change in 
circumstances likely to occur within the period for which the consent is 
required or granted.”

38



18.The site is within the urban edge where the principle of development is 
acceptable, subject to consideration of the detailed matters. Policy 125.TC 
provides general support for appropriate public art within Eastleigh Town 
Centre in order to create a high quality built environment. 

19.The art work will be attached to the building and so is being applied for 
under an advertisement consent. This means that the assessment can only 
consider the proposals impact on visual amenity and public safety, as set 
out within the following policies.  

20.Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 
proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, 
layout, design and siting (applicable elements).

21.Policy 67.BE of the local plan states that consent will be granted for the 
display of a hoarding, sign or advertisement providing it does not detract 
from the character of the locality and it is appropriate to its surroundings in 
terms of design, size, materials, colour, positioning and the extent of 
existing signage and the amount of illumination does not detract from the 
character of the locality or pose a risk to public safety.

Proposal

22.The proposed art work spells out the word YOU and has been chosen to 
highlight the points new strapline Moving You. The art work is part of the 
wider project to refurbish the building’s internal spaces and has been 
secured through a grant from the Arts Council. The aim behind the project 
is to raise the profile of the point as an arts and leisure venue and attract a 
broader range of people. 

Visual Amenity

23.The art work consists of 4,641 suspended steel discs with the word YOU in 
a darker colour with a lighter background. The discs will be able to flutter in 
the wind creating movement and attracting attention of passers by. These 
types of discs have been used to clad the Debenham’s building in Oxford 
Street. The art work has been designed as a statement piece to draw 
attention and create interest in the use of the building.  

24.The art work measures 0.95m(wide) by 2.8m(high) and will be mounted on 
the top section of the wall lining up with edge of the building. The size of 
the art work is large in comparison to the wall area, although it is 
recognised that as a piece of art work it is supposed to stand out from the 
building.  

25.The proposal will be mounted on the western corner of the building and its 
siting has been chosen to directly replace the two mermaids previously 

39



mounted to the wall. However, in this position some of the art work’s 
impact is lost as views from Romsey Road will be partially obscured by 
signage and traffic lights at the junction and by trees and other street 
furniture.  

26.Overall, it is considered that the public art work will add to the appearance 
of the building and its surroundings that form the western entrance to 
Eastleigh Town Centre. In this regards the proposal accords with Policies 
59.BE & 67.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan and is supported by 
the Built Heritage Consultant. 

Public Safety

27.The art work is not considered to pose a risk to public safety. The proposal 
will be lit by an existing spot light mounted in the ground and will not 
obscure any public safety equipment (such as CCTV). Although the art 
work faces onto Leigh Road junction no objection has been raised by the 
County Highway Officer, subject to conditions. As such the proposal 
accords with Policy 67.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan. 

Locally Listed Building

28.The art work will be attached to the external wall of a locally listed building, 
which is recognised for its architectural, historical and amenity value at a 
local level. While the advertisement consent does not allow consideration 
of the locally listed building, a note will be put on the decision notice to 
request that the art work uses fixing methods that avoid or minimise any 
damage to the brick work. 

Conclusion

29.The art work is recommended for consent.  

40



41



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 17 March 2020 

FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that: 

(1) £2,500 is allocated to an air quality source apportionment study from 
developers’ contributions;

(2) £1,500 is allocated for a replacement basket swing at Lawn Road Play Area 
from developers’ contributions; and

(3) Up to £3,000 is allocated for a review of the Local Area youth service from the 
revenue reserve.

Summary

This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital budget 
and revenue budget.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. 
The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling 
Congestion, Tackling Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and 
Wellbeing, Supporting an Excellent Environment, and Reinvigorating Town 
and Local Centres.

43

Agenda Item 9



Eastleigh Borough Council

Air Quality Source Apportionment Study

2. At its meeting of the 25 September 2018 this Committee allocated £10,000 
towards a source apportionment study. The study aims to determine the 
relative contribution of different sources of air pollution affecting the town, in 
particular for those areas within the Air Quality Management Areas. The 
results will be used to improve monitoring and target measures to improve air 
quality.

3. The study was placed on hold until related work to support the current review 
of the Local Plan had been completed. A more detailed quote has since been 
obtained showing the study will cost £12,500. It is therefore recommended 
that a further £2,500 is allocated for the study from developers’ contributions 
for air quality from DC F/15/75880, EBC, UPS Ltd, Dutton Lane, Eastleigh.

Lawn Road basket swing 

4. The basket swing seat at the Lawn Road Play Area has recently been 
vandalised. The seat is beyond economic repair and new seat is needed. The 
swing will be retained in the wider improvements to play area planned for later 
this year.  It is recommended that £1,500 is allocated for a new seat from 
developers’ contributions from OSF/06/58493, Anchor Homes Ltd Re: Land 
north of 96 Ruskin Road, Eastleigh.

Review of youth services

5. Bishopstoke Fair Oak and Horton Heath Local Area (BIFOHH) have engaged 
an external consultant to review the youth service provided within the Area. 
This will lead to a range of recommendations including the options for future 
procurement of the service. BIFFOH have approved a budget of up to £12,000 
for this purpose.

6. Local Councillors are also reviewing the provision of youth services within the 
Eastleigh Local Area with a view to letting a new contract from April 2021 and 
they would like the consultant to review the potential for improved joint 
working and/or procurement as part of the contract. It is estimated that a 
budget of up to £3,000 may be needed for this additional work and it is 
therefore recommended that this sum is allocated from the revenue reserve.

Equality and Diversity Implications

7. An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out as the report 
contains no direct proposed significant changes to new or existing services, 
policies or strategies. Separate consideration of the accessibility aspect of 
each project will be carried out as part of the project delivery. All of the 
proposed activities are designed to be as inclusive as possible, tackling 
discrimination, promoting equality of opportunity and promoting good relations 
between different community groups. 

44



Eastleigh Borough Council

8. Councillors would like to replace the basket swing at Lawn Road as this an 
accessible piece of play equipment enjoyed by both able-bodied youngsters 
and those with disabilities. 

9. The current youth service has been very successful in engaging with some of 
our most challenging young people. The review will explore how meeting the 
needs of this group, and those of other more vulnerable young people can be 
improved, both in the current year and within the new contract from April 
2021.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

10. The source apportionment study will highlight our worst sources of air 
pollution, better informing the actions within the Air Quality Strategy to reduce 
emissions.

11. Officers have specified a more durable basket swing seat at Lawn Road in an 
attempt reduce the frequency it has to be replaced. The vandalised swing will 
be recycled.

GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER (EASTLEIGH)

Date:  02 March 2020
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch 
Tel No: 02380 683369
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Planning Application - Land South of Chestnut Avenue/North Stoneham Park, Stoneham Lane, Eastleigh, SO50 9HT (F/19/87086)
	8 Planning Application - The Point, Leigh Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9DE
	9 Finance Management Report

